
          

 

 

CENTURY GARDENS VILLAGE 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MARCH 2, 2023 
6:30 P.M. 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
8785 SW 165th Avenue, Suite 200 

Miami, FL 33193 

www.centurygardensvillagecdd.org 
786.303.3661 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



AGENDA  
CENTURY GARDENS VILLAGE 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Kendall Executive Center  

8785 SW 165th Avenue, Suite 200  
Miami, Florida 33193 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
March 2, 2023 

 6:30 p.m. 
 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication………………………………………………………………………………………Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Declare Vacancies and Consider Appointment to Fill Vacancies (Seats 3, 4 & 5) 

E. Administer Oath of Office and Review Board Member Duties and Responsibilities 

F. Consider Resolution No. 2023-01 – Election of Officers………………………………………………...Page 2 

G. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

H. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

I. Approval of Minutes  

1. October 6, 2022 Regular Board Meeting……………………………………………………………..Page 3 

J. Old Business 

1. Update Regarding Tree Removal (Arborist Report – Trimscape)……………………………………Page 6 

2. Update Regarding Raised Sidewalk Repairs 

3. Update Regarding Irrigation System Repairs 

K. New Business 

1. Consider Rate Adjustment – Alvarez Engineers……………………………………………………..Page 18 

2. Consider Adjustment to District Counsel Fee Structure……………………………………………..Page 20 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2023-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Proposed Budget………....Page 22 

L. Administrative & Operational Matters 

M. Board Member & Staff Closing Comments 

N. Adjourn 



Page 1



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
CENTURY GARDENS VILLAGE COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT (“DISTRICT”) ELECTING THE 
OFFICERS OF THE DISTRICT AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) of the Century Gardens Village 
Community Development District (the “District”) is a local unit of special-purpose government 
created and existing pursuant to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 190.006(6), Florida Statutes, as soon as practicable 
after each election or appointment to the Board, the Board shall organize by electing one (1) of 
its members as chairperson and by electing a secretary, and such other officers as the Board may 
deem necessary. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE CENTURY GARDENS VILLAGE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT, THAT: 

 

1. The following persons are elected to the offices shown, to wit: 

 
    Chairperson 

    Vice Chairperson  

    Secretary/Treasurer 

    Assistant Secretary  

    Assistant Secretary 

    Assistant Secretary 

    Assistant Secretary 

   

2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

 
PASSED, ADOPTED and BECOMES EFFECTIVE this 2nd day of March, 2023. 

 
 

ATTEST: CENTURY GARDENS VILLAGE                         
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT    
   

 
___________________________         
Secretary/Assistant Secretary               Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 

Page 2



CENTURY GARDENS VILLAGE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

OCTOBER 6, 2022 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
District Manager Armando Silva called the October 6, 2022, Special Board Meeting of the Century 
Gardens Village Community Development District (the “District”) to order at 6:53 p.m. in the Kendall 
Executive Center Meeting Room located at 8785 SW 165th Street, Miami, Florida 33193. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Mr. Silva presented proof of publication that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published 
in the Miami Daily Business Review on September 23, 2022, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 
2022/2023 Regular Meeting Schedule, as legally required. 
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM  
 
Mr. Silva determined that the attendance of Chairperson Paola Mastrodomenico, Vice Chairperson 
Licette Conde-Matos and Supervisors Johanna Diaz constituted a quorum and it was in order to proceed 
with the meeting.   
 
Staff in attendance were: District Manager Armando Silva of Special District Services, Inc.; and General 
Counsel Scott Cochran of Billing, Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & Ramsey, P.A. 
 
Others in attendance: Barbara Almanza, Miami, Florida.  
 
D.  ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda.  
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  July 7, 2022, Special Board Meeting and Public Hearing 
 
Mr. Silva presented the minutes of the July 7, 2022, Special Board Meeting and Public Hearing and 
asked if there were any changes.  There being no changes, a motion was made by Ms. Conde-Matos, 
seconded by Ms. Mastrodomenico and unanimously passed approving the minutes of the July 7, 2022, 
Special Board Meeting, as presented. 
 
G. OLD BUSINESS  
 

1.  Update Regarding Tree Removal (Roots Causing Damage) 
 

Page 3



Mr. Silva advised that the Field Operations Team has been in contact with a couple of landscapers who 
informed them that the only way to address the root intrusion concerns would be to completely remove 
the trees, which would cause damage.   
 
Mr. Silva stated that an arborist will be visiting the District in the upcoming weeks to determine the 
number of trees whose root systems are affecting utilities and raising sidewalks/driveway approaches so 
that the trees can be removed. A discussion ensued after which; 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Mastrodomenico, seconded by Ms. Conde-Matos and unanimously passed 
to approve an amount not to exceed $9,000 for the removal of trees (including stump grinding and 
installation of sod) whose root systems are affecting utilities and raising sidewalks/driveway approaches. 
 

2. Update Regarding Raised Sidewalk Repairs 
 
Mr. Silva stated that Field Ops will be conducting an inspection of the raised sidewalks after the trees 
that are raising some sidewalks have been removed.  
 

3. Discussion Regarding Irrigation System 
 
Mr. Silva advised that the irrigation system repairs for Clock A had been completed.  The irrigation 
maintenance contractors have now commenced working on Clock B and expect the repairs to be 
completed within the next few months. 
 
H. NEW BUSINESS 

 
1.  Consider Resolution No. 2022-05 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Amended Budget 

 
Mr. Silva presented Resolution No. 2022-05, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE CENTURY 
GARDENS VILLAGE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
AUTHORIZING AND ADOPTING AN AMENDED FINAL FISCAL YEAR 
2021/2022 BUDGET (“AMENDED BUDGET”), PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 
189, FLORIDA STATUTES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

  
Mr. Silva read the title into the record and provided an explanation for the document. He indicated that 
there was an operating fund balance of approximately $169,000 at the end of the fiscal year. A discussion 
ensued after which: 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Mastrodomenico, seconded by Ms. Conde-Matos and unanimously passed 
to adopt Resolution No. 2022-05, as presented, thereby setting the amended/revised budget for the 
2021/2022 fiscal year. 
 
I. ADMINISTRATIVE & OPERATIONAL MATTERS 
 
There were no Administrative and Operational matters at this time.  
 
J. BOARD MEMBER & STAFF CLOSING COMMENTS 

Page 4



 
Mr. Silva stated that he had inspected the District prior to the meeting and observed that the sidewalks 
were in need of the pressure cleaning services. A discussion ensued after which; 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Mastrodomenico, seconded by Ms. Conde-Matos and unanimously passed 
to approve an amount not to exceed $10,000 for the pressure cleaning of the sidewalks within the District.  
 
K.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Ms. Mastrodomenico, 
seconded by Ms. Conde-Matos and unanimously passed to adjourn the Regular Board Meeting at 7:40 
p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary                          Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 
 

Page 5



1

Trimscape Corp

Jaimie Deery, ISA Certified Arborist

19525 SW 272nd St Homestead FL 33031

305-978-5558

Trimscape@hotmail.com

December. 12, 2022

Century Gardens Village CDD

c/o Pablo Jerez & Armando Silva

Outline

I have observed the above referenced property on December 7 2022 and December 9 2022 to 
evaluate all of the existing trees in the swales that are property of the CDD.  Tree Species that were 
included in the evaluation were 131 Live oaks (Quercus virginiana) including 1 that is a stump, 2 Wild 
tamarind (Lysiloma sabicu), 20 Christmas palms (Adonidia merrillii) and 1 Crape Myrtle (Lagerstroemia).   
I found most of these trees to be in good health, however I have serious concern that most pose a high
level of risk to both persons and property due to space limitations.  These risks include trip and fall 
hazards, damage to sidewalks, driveways, street pavement, underground utilities, vehicles driving over 
damaged pavement areas and also presents a liability and repair costs to the CDD. 

Recommendations

I rated the trees as a risk to nearby targets with a level of Low= L,  Moderate=M or High=H.  The 
trees with a high risk are recommended for removal immediately, the moderate risk level trees are 
recommended to be removed within the next 3- 5 years and the low risk level trees are recommended 
for reevaluation and possible removal within the next 5 years.  My decision to put the trees into the high 
risk category were based off of roots already affecting nearby sidewalks, driveways, strees and/ or 
underground utilities, my choice for the moderate risk category was due to roots not yet visually 
affecting any sidewalks, driveways, streets or utilities but based on planting area and my knowledge of 
the species and their growth potential and how they will grow to affect the said areas as they mature 
within the next 3-5 years.  

Primary Concerns

There are a total of 85 live oak trees, and 2 wild tamarind trees I am rating as high risk and 
recommending immediate action for removal.  The concern is that the area where these 87 trees were 
installed is insufficient amount of space for these large species of trees and they are actively lifting 
sidewalks, driveways, streets and invading underground utilities causing extreme hazard to targets such 

Page 6



2

as persons and property, unfortunately, no extent of mitigation would remove this risk or avoid further 
damage from occurring.  There are a total of 37 live oak trees I rated as a moderate risk due to the space 
limitations and that within the next 3-5 years they will outgrow these areas but are not visibly lifting 
pavement or causing hazards as of yet. However, as the said trees continue to grow they will proceed to 
raise nearby pavement, asphalt, and sidewalks creating trip hazards to pedestrians, homeowners, and 
visitors as well as encroaching into underground utilities causing interference with operations. There are 
a total of 3 double Christmas palms rated as a moderate hazard due to being planted slightly above 
grade creating a trip hazard and it is recommended that these either be removed or replanted properly 
to alleviate the potential of a tripping hazard however due to their shallow root systems they do not 
pose a risk to lifting pavement or underground utilities. The other remaining 27 trees are rated as low 
risk 10 of those being Live oaks and 17 of them Christmas palms and are recommended for reevaluation 
in the next 3-5 years.

Other Observations

There are also several trees improperly pruned throughout the community creating structurally 
weak trees that are a hazard during storms and or heavy winds and these are included on the list to be 
removed.  Most of the hardwood trees recommended for removal are planted in approximately 3sq ft 
areas surrounded by pavement and the recommended planting distance from a sidewalk or driveway for 
live oak trees at max genetic potential is 13 ft. Also, some of the areas where trees have been removed 
there are still damaged and lifted sidewalks that still pose a present trip or fall risk to homeowners, 
visitors, pedestrians, and other persons. 

Conclusion

Attached you will find a table of planting space recommendations from the Ifas Extension as 
well as a spreadsheet with recommended trees for removal and their locations.  Unfortunately, no level 
of mitigation such as pruning, reduction, or root barriers will eliminate these hazards of the said trees,
and is why I am recommending removal either immediately or in the near future.   You will also find 
attached photos of some trees recommended for removal.  If needed please refer to this drop box link 
https://www.dropbox.com/scl/fo/37ndcrgf1mo0ce9rihfdq/h?dl=0&rlkey=qjpvqtz1fptklxmw9moefb18h
for all photos taken of trees within this tree risk assessment. 

*If the trees are removed, this will require a permitted approval from the Miami Dade County 
Department of Environmental Resource Management.  If you have any questions regarding this report, 
please do not hesitate to contact me and I will be happy to answer your questions and discuss and 
concerns you may have.  

Best Regards,

Jaimie Deery 

ISA Certified Arborist

FL-9897A

Page 7



3

Photos of some of the Live oak trees with a high level of risk being recommended for immediate removal. 

  

  

Page 8



4

Continued Photos of Oak trees 

    

Street view of trees for removal 

     

Page 9



5

Photos of Palm trees planted above grade showing tripping hazard 

   

Below Photos of palm trees planted where sidewalk was damaged from tree that was there before

   

Page 10



6

Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
CENTURY GARDENS VILLAGE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT APPROVING A PROPOSED BUDGET AND NON-AD 
VALOREM SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
2023/2024; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the Century Gardens Village 
Community Development District (“District”) is required by Chapter 190.008, Florida Statutes, 
to approve a Proposed Budget for each fiscal year; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 2023/2024 
has been prepared and considered by the Board. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE CENTURY GARDENS VILLAGE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT, THAT: 
 

Section 1. The Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is approved and adopted. 
 

Section 2.    A Public Hearing is hereby scheduled for July 6, 2023 at 6:30 p.m. in the 
Kendall Executive Center located at 8785 SW 165th Avenue, Suite 200, Miami, Florida 33193, 
for the purpose of receiving public comments on the Proposed Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Budget. 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED and BECOMES EFFECTIVE this 2nd day of March, 2023. 
 

 
ATTEST: CENTURY GARDENS VILLAGE 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice-Chairperson 

Page 22



       Century Gardens Village
   Community Development District

 Proposed Budget For
   Fiscal Year 2023/20234

     October 1, 2023 - September 30, 2024

Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28


	Century Gardens Village Community Development District - March 2, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-01 – Election of Officers
	October 6, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Update Regarding Tree Removal (Arborist Report – Trimscape)
	Consider Rate Adjustment – Alvarez Engineers
	Consider Adjustment to District Counsel Fee Structure
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-02 –Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Proposed Budget




